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Focus On: The Harris Mansion

The former home of Mr. and Mrs. B.E.
Harris, Il is located at 809 West Church
Street, Champaign. Period deed records
make the exact date of purchase difficult
to ascertain. During the late nineteenth
century, some 521 Champaign properties
were deeded to the name B.F. Harris with
little or no information recorded to
describe them individually. Furthermore,
the property had been in the family for
quite some time as it was originally the
site of the 1880s home of the first B.F. Har-
ris. Mr. Harris, Sr. was a banker and land
owner who started the Cattle Bank and
First National Bank. Mr. Harris, Jr. was
president of the General Alloys Company
of Boston.

The new Harris House was designed in
1904 by architect Arthur Heun (1864-
1946) of Chicago. The death of Harris, Sr.
was anticipated and it was his wish thata
new residence for his son (Harris II) be
built. Between 1903 and 1904, Mr. Heun
made several trips to Champaign to in-
spect the site and confer with both B.F.
Harris, Sr. and Jr.. Late in 1904, plans for
an “English country residence” were final-
ized and approved. Construction, how-
ever, waited until May of 1905, the same
month B.F. Harris, Sr. passed away. As
planned, the 1880s house was razed.

Construction of the 25 room mansion
took almost two years and over $200,000,
during which time B.F. Harris I and
Melenda Melish Harris accumulated the
furnishings for their new home in this
country and abroad. The home was com-
pleted in early 1907. The Harris’ had two
sons; William Melish Harris, was born in
the house on June 29, 1907, and B.E. Har-
ris, Il was born at home on May 17, 1909.

Most of what graces the next 25 years
of the Harris Mansion history is a roaring
“20s social account of who's who in Cham-
paign-Urbana and throughout the nation.
Frequent parties attracted such notables
as Theodore Roosevelt, General Leonard
Wood, Governor Frank Louden, Al
Capone, and Dr. David Kinley, U of I
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President. The third floor ballroom was
rarely empty on weekends and overnight
guests enjoyed lawn tennis and a dip in
Champaign-Urbana’s first swimming
pool (1912) the next morning. This family
also had the community’s first horseless
carriage.

B.E Harris, II died on December 19,
1920 at the age of fifty-two following a
long illness from stomach cancer. His
wife, Melenda continued to lead her
opulent party-filled lifestyle until her
death in May of 1930 shortly after a
famed $50,000 robbery at the house.

On November 10, 1929, hardly more
than a week after the Black Tuesday stock
market crash, several hundred guests (ar-
ticles report 150 to 400) were gathered for
a party following the Army-Illinois foot-
ball game. The guest list was studded
with notables of the business world and
public life from throughout the Midwest.
Most of the guests were congregated on
the third floor where the Harris’ had a
ballroom complete with stage. Four men
appeared at the door and informed the
footman that they were there for a practi-
cal joke. Harris, an inventor and manufac-
turer, had a reputation for introducing the
unusual into his parties. Once inside, the

men whipped out their guns and began
ordering the guests to hand over valu-
ables...cash, jewelry, and furs. They were
greeted in many instances with expres-
sions of amusement in belief that this was
another of the host’s pranks. Stanley Kauf-
man, Champaign merchant, was slow
when answering a command to raise his
hands and a bullet fired by one of the in-
truders ricocheted off the floor and
creased his scalp. Meanwhile, one of the
guests slipped away and called the police.
A squad of patrolmen arrived at the site
and an indoor battle ensued. The incom-
ing officers and the four fleeing gunmen
met on the stately grand staircase. Clyde
Davis, who some years later was named

.Chief of Police, was shot in the wrist. One

of the bandits was fatally wounded,
another surrendered and three escaped.
(One of the bandits had been waiting out-
side with a get-a-way car.) The three who
escaped were later apprehended in Los
Angeles and Effingham and sentences of
one year to life were passed. Of the four,
as of 1954, two were reported working on
the railroad at Mattoon, and another was
in Chicago after driving a cab in Cham-
paign for a number of years. The death of
the fourth occurred in 1954. The wild






